
APPROVED 

 

MUNICIPALITY OF MT. LEBANON 

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES 

 

DATE: Tuesday, March 25, 2014 

 

TIME: 7 p.m. 

 

PLACE: Mt. Lebanon Municipality – Commission Chambers 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Rick Sabeh, Dennis Pitman, Bill Pope, Carolyn Byham 

 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: Municipal Planner Keith McGill, Municipal Engineer Matt 

Bagaley 

 

Agenda Items:  
Minutes of the February 25, 2014, Planning Board meeting. Mr. Pittman moved and Mrs. Byham 

seconded to approve the February 25, 2014, Planning Board minutes. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

Old Business 

None 

 

New Business  
a. Summit Church Plan of Lots – a request for preliminary approval and a recommendation   

for final approval for a subdivision of the former Lutheran Church property into two single 

family lots. 

 

Mr. McGill said this property is at the tail end of Country Club Drive where Our Savior 

Lutheran Church once stood. The property was sold and the new owner asked for and 

received a demolition permit. The church has been demolished and a subdivision of lots 

for two single-family homes is being requested. 

 

Mr. Bagaley read into the record a letter from Gateway Engineers dated March 17, 2014. 

 

Mr. Pittman asked if the applicants were end-users or developers. 

 

Mr. McGill said he believes the applicants are end-users. 

 

Mr. Sabeh asked if the lot sizes are similar to the lots at Summit Pointe. 

 

Mr. Bagaley indicated they are comparable to the Summit Pointe lot sizes. 

 

Mrs. Byahm asked how long Summit Pointe has been dormant. 

 



Mt. Lebanon Planning Board Minutes 

March 25, 2014  Page 2 

 

Mr. McGill said the original application was submitted in approximately 1999. One single-

family home was constructed and sold in approximately 2002, but no other lots have been 

sold since then. 

 

Citizen Comments 
There were no citizen comments. 

 

Mr. Pope moved and Mrs. Byham seconded to grant preliminary approval and recommend 

final approval for the Summit Church Plan of Lots conditioned on the engineer’s review 

comments in a letter dated March 17, 2014. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

b. Meadowcroft Park Improvements – a request for a recommendation on proposed 

improvements to Meadowcroft Park as related to the adopted Comprehensive Plan.  

 

The purpose of this project is to: provide ADA access to park facilities in accordance with 

the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and the rehabilitation of existing basketball 

and tennis facilities at Meadowcroft Park. ADA access includes construction of accessible 

ramps and handrails from N. Meadowcroft Road to the park facilities. Rehabilitations at 

the tennis court include: resurfacing court surfaces, replacing existing deteriorated light 

poles and fixtures; replacement of damaged sections of chain link fencing, and replacement 

of tennis net system on two courts. Rehabilitation at the basketball courts include: 

resurfacing of court surface, upgrade of lighting fixtures; replacement of damaged sections 

of chain link fence and sidewalks. 

 

Mr. McGill said the board is asked to make a recommendation regarding upgrades to a 

park, which is not normal for the board. However, in order to apply for grants from DCNR 

the municipality needs letters of support, which have been received from Matt Smith, Dan 

Miller, Tim Murphy and Allegheny County. These letters, along with a letter from the 

Commissioners and the application, will then be submitted to DCNR. This is a joint use 

facility between the school district and the municipality for a 25-year lease which the 

municipality has. The park sits on school property but the lease agreement will give the 

municipality the ability to make improvements to the parcel for park purposes. The park 

serves residents in the immediate area, as well as students that attend the nearby school. 

 

Mrs. Byham asked if the adjacent parking lot is a municipal lot. 

 

Mr. McGill said the lot is not a public lot. If the municipality is successful in obtaining the 

grant then one on-street parking space will be designated for ADA use. 

 

Mr. Pittman asked if Mt. Lebanon is capable of pre-paying the 25-year lease to the school 

district. 

 

Mr. McGill said it is $1-a-year lease. 

 

Mr. Pope asked for more details regarding the ADA upgrades. 



Mt. Lebanon Planning Board Minutes 

March 25, 2014  Page 3 

 

Mr. Bagaley said there is a significant grade between North Meadowcroft and the existing 

facilities – both the tennis and basketball courts. They are proposing to install handicap 

ramps that would meet ADA requirements. The switchback ramps would go from North 

Meadowcroft and connect to a ramp that goes between the tennis and basketball courts. 

Also in the grant application is a proposal to install a bio retention trench with plantings, 

as well as additional plantings between North Meadowcroft and the park facilities. 

 

Mr. Sabeh asked if the park is accessible from the school. 

 

Mr. Bagaley said it is. 

 

Mr. McGill said Lincoln School installed upgraded playground equipment, and has plans 

to install a water fountain along with another element this year. 

 

Citizen Comments 
There were no citizen comments. 

 

Mrs. Byham moved and Mr. Pope seconded to recommend the improvements as proposed 

and find them to be in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan’s Resources Goal to 

enhance the municipality’s provision of natural and civic amenities for those of all abilities 

and ages. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

Mr. Sabeh said this was Mrs. Byham’s last meeting on the Planning Board and thanked her for her 

input and knowledge, and her years of service. 

 

Next Meeting - The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Mt. Lebanon Planning Board is 

Tuesday, April 22, 2014, at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 


